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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Kilburn Chemicals Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kilburn Chemicais Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2023, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
inciuding a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory Information
hereinafter referred to as financial statement.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2023, its foss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Director’s Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. The Director’s report is not made available to us at the date of auditor's
report. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS) specified under section 133
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rufes, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matfers related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to figuidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financlal Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individuaily or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit In accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve coilusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

“xgvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
counting estimates and related disclosures made by management,
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» Conciude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conciusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financlal statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internaf control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them ali
relationships and other matters that may reasocnably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022, included in these
financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified
opinion on those statements on April 29, 2022,

Report on Other Legal and Regufatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the "Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by faw have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

() In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(@) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on




SRBC&COLLP

Chareed Accountants
(fY With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these

financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure 2" {o this report;

(@) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been
paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule i1 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given fo us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial posifion
in its financial statements - Refer Note 33 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

ifi, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred fo the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowiedge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on hehalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guaranfee, security or the like on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties'), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party ("Uitimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonahle
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any
material misstatement.
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v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

vi.  As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAL Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Sukrut Mehta
Partner
Membership Number: 101974
UDIN: 23101974BGUFLI5080
Piace of Signature: Ahmedabad
Date: April 29, 2023
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Annexure 1 referred to in Paragraph 1 of Repori on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
of our report of even date of Kilburn Chemicals Limited for the year ended March 31, 2023,

i (a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantifative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(a)(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particutars of intangibles
assets,

() All Property, Plant and Eauipment were physically verified by the management in the
previcus year in accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in three
years which is reascnable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. No material discrepancies were identified during such verification.

(¢} The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee)
are held in the name of the Company.

(dy The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
use assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988
and rules made thereunder.

i (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification by the management is reasonable and the coverage
and procedure for such verification is appropriate. No material discrepancies in aggregate
for each class of inventory were noted on physical verification of inventory,

(b) As disclosed in note 16 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. flve crores in aggregate from banks during the year
on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. Based on the records examined
by us in the normal course of audit of the financial statements, the quarterly
returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with the
audited hbooks of accounts of the Company. The Company do not have sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores.in aggregate from financial institutions during the
year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company.

iii. (@) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans,
stood guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on ciause 3(iii){a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(b)Y During the year the Company has not provided guarantees, provided security and
granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the reguirement to report on clause
3diii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. The investments made during the
year in a company is not prejudicial to the Company’'s interest. Further, no investment is
made in firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.

(c) The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies,
w\ﬂrms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the reguirement to
\\ﬂ, E@port on clause 3(1i(c), (d), (e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of
section 186 of the Act in respect of investments made have been complied with by the
Company. Furiher, in our opinion and according fo the infermation and explanations
given to us, there are no loans, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3 (iv) of the order is not applicable {o that extent to the Company.

v, The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be depaosits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vi. The Central Governmen{ has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products of the company.

vii, (@) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statufory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, professional tax, cess and other statutory dues
appficable to it. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these
statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b) The dues of duty of goods anc service tax, provident fund, ESIC, income tax, duty of
excise, service tax, professional tax, cess and other statutory dues which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of the | Amount Period to | Forum where the dispute is | Remarks,
s{atute dues involved | which  the { pending if any
(Rs. in { amount
takhs) relates
Goods & | ITC Credit Mis | 54.35 2018-19 Commissioner Appeals
Service Tax | MATCH
Act,2017 between
GST2A and 3B
Goods & | ITC Credit Mis | 56.37 2018-19 Commissioner Appeals
Service Tax | MATCH ‘
Act,2017 between
GST2A and 3B

viii. The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income
during the year. Accordingty, the reguirement {o report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

ix. (@) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

{b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

{¢) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

@ s, (d) Onanoverall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised
on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.
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Xi.

xii.

xii.

Xiv.

XV.

Xvi,

(e) The company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the order is not applicable {o the company.

(f) The company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(bO(f) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(@) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer /
further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on
clause 30)(a) of the Order is notf applicable to the Company.

{(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
/fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and
hence, the reguirement fo report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(@) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-sectfion (12) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 has been filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audif and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year,

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xiiXa) (b) and (¢) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the refated parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section
177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under
clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable
to the Company,

(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business. -

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for
the period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement {o report on clause 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable te the Company.

{a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934)
are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement fo report on clause
3(xvi)a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. :

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank

_ of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
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(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made
by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xviXc) of the
Order is not appiicable to the Company.

(d) Thereis no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xvi)d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to INR 2,035.84 lakhs and INR 1,597.66
lakhs in the current year and in the immediately preceding financial year respectively.

The previous statutory auditors of the company have resigned during the year and we have
taken into considerations the issues, objections or concerns raised if any, by the outgoing
auditor,

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of section i35 of the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to the Corporate
Social Responsibility is not applicable to the company. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xx)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

BC&COLLP
ed Accountants
m Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

Partner

Membership Number: 101974

UDIN: 2

Place of Signature; Ahmedabad

Date: A

per Sukrut Mehta

3101974BGUFLI5080

pril 29, 2023
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's Repori of even date on the Financial Statements of
Kithurn Chemicals Limted

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™

We have audited the internal financial controis with reference to financial statements of Kilburn
Chemicals Limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibliity for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ("ICAI"), These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financiai controls with
reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAIl. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference fo these financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internaf financial controls with reference to these financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference {o these Financial Statements

A company’'s internal financial controis with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the mainfenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of coflusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due io error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financiai controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial conirols with reference to financial
statemenis were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal controi over
financiaf reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Sukrut Mehta

Partner

Membership Number: 101974
UDIN: 23101974BGUFLIS080
Place of Signature: Ahmedabad
Date: April 29, 2023
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 33™ Annual Report together with the Audited
Accounts of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31° March, 2023.

FINANCIAL HIGHELIGHTS

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Revenue from Operations - -
Other income 21.30 8.53
Total Income 21.30 8.53
Profit Before Exceptional items & tax (3277.59) (2853.81)
Exceptional item {1881.99) 6030.02
Profit Before Tax {1395.59) 3173.21
Profit After Tax (1395.59) 3456.06

GENERAI, REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND THE STATE OF COMPANY’S
AFFAIRS AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the last quarter of the year under review, your Company has commissioned Phase 1 of
Titanium Dioxide (TiO2) plant at Dahej, Gujarat with an installed capacity of 16,500 MTPA.

Ti02, is one of the most widely used white pigment because of its brightness and its strong UV
light absorbing capabilities. It is used to provide whiteness and opacity to products such as
paints, coatings, plastics, papers, inks, foods, medicines, toothpastes. Paints and Coatings is the
major end-use industry for TiO2 and is growing at a double digit growth rate. One of the major
benefits of foraying into TiO2 is the advantage of this product being an import substitute.
Currently, around 70% of TiO2 is being imported in India.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

India’s Titanium Dioxide (Ti02) is expected to grow at a 4.2% CAGR reaching 3,29,000
MTPA by 2025. Capex announcement in paint sector will further accelerate the growth.

Your Company is committed to provide value additions to its shareholders in a long run.

RESERVES AND SURPLUS

The Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserves for the Financial Year 2022-
23.

DIVIDEND

Your Directors have not recommended any Dividend for the financial year ended 31st March,
2023,

SHARFE CAPITAL

The Paid-up Equity Share Capital as at 315 March, 2023 stood at Rs. 12.15 Crore.



Under the yenr teview, the Company has neither mude smy issue of equity shares with
diflerential voling rights nen has pranted any stock options or sweat equily. The Company has
no LROP scheme in place.

DEPOSITS
The compeny has nol aecepted any deposil [om the public and shareholders Balling witlan the
ambil of sechion 73 ol the companies Acl 2013, read with the Companies (Acceplance of

Deposily) Rules, 2014,

AUMNTORS REFORT

There 18 no qualilication, reservation or adverse remarks or diselaimer made by the Audilors
in (heir reporl on the (naneial stalement ol the Cornpany i the Financial Year ended on 31%
Mlareh, 20023,

BOARD MEIETINGS

Dharing the yeor, the Bostd meet 8 times on 29042022, 11.06.20202 30.07.2022, 30.08.2022,
21102022, 07122022, 20.01.2023 and 31.03.2023. The maximum gap boetween any Two
Board Mectings was less than one Hunchred and Twenty days.

PARTICULARS QF LOANS, GUARANTERS QR INVESTMENTS

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments coversd under the provisions of Section 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the Notes o the Financial Stotements,

RELATTD PARTY TRANSACTTIONS (RPT)

Adl comtracts / amangements / (ransactions entered into with Related Parties duving the vear
uncler review were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis,

Thers were no Matorial Related Party ‘Uransactions .o, transactions cxccoding 10% of tho
annual tinover gs per the last audited Rrancial staterments, TTence, no ransactions are required
to be reported i lorm AOCE,

MATERIAL CIHANGES

Dhving the Tasl quarter of the year under review, your Company has commissioned Thase 1 of
Titariuen Dioxide (1902) plant at Dabe], Gujaral with an installed capueily ol 16,500 MTDA,

CONSERVATTON O TNTRGY, " TECIINOTOGY " ABSORITION,  TORETGN e
EXCHANGE EARNINGS ANIY OU'1' GO

‘The information pertaining to Conservation of Lnerpy, lechnolopy Absorption, Forcign
Lixchanpe Farnings and outgo as required under Scetion 134(3)(m) of the Companses Act, 2013
read with Rule 8{3) of the Companics (Accounts) Eules, 2004 iz furnished in Annexure- A
and is attached to this report.



SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

The Company do not have any subsidiary, the Company is wholly Owned Subsidiary (WOS)
Company of Meghmani Organics Limited.

DIRECTORS

All five Directors viz. Mr. Jayanti Patel, Mr. Ashish Soparkar, Mr. Natwar Patel, Mr Ramesh Patel and
Mr. Anand Patel were appointed as an Additional Directors in the Board meeting held on 23"
December, 2021, who held their position till the conclusion of ensuing Annual General meeting of the
Company. These five directors were regularised in the last Annual General Meeting held on 30.09.2022
and tendered their resignation and ceased to be a director w.e.f. 31.12.2022 in order to implement the
succession planning among the promoters.

During the year under review, Mr. Ankit Patel, Mr Darshan Patel, Mr. Maulik Patel, Mr. Karana Patel
and Mr. Kaushal Soparkar were appointed as additional director by the Board of Directors in their
meeting held on 7" December, 2022 who were affirmed by the shareholders in their Extra Ordinary
General meeting held on 31* December, 2022,

Mr, Ankit Patel has been appointed as Executive Chairman for a period of five years from 31.12.2022
to 30.12.2027.

Mr, Darshan Patel has been appointed as Managing Director for a period of five years from 31.12.2022
to 30:12.2027. ' ' ' ‘

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Pursuant to Section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Rules framed there under, the
following persons have been designated as Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:

1. Mr. Darshan Patel — Managing Director

2, Mr. Gurjant Singh Chahal — Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

3. Mr. Jayesh Patel — Company Secretary
INTERNAL AUDIT

M/s. C N K Khandwala & Associates, Chartered Accountants has been appointed as Internal Auditor
for the Financial Year 2023-24.

FIXED DEPOSITS

During the year, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public falling within the ambit of
Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there under.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

A provision relevant to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR} as provided under Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013, was not applicable to your Company during the year under review and hence the
Board has not constituted CSR Committee and relevant Policy thereof.



AUDITORS

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. SRBC & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad (Firm Regn. No. 324982E / I 300003} has
been appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five years to hold office from the
conclusion of 32nd Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 37th AGM, which were ratified by
the shareholders in their Annual General meeting held on 30% September, 2022.

During the year, the Auditors had not reported any matter under Section 143(12) of the Act and
therefore, no detail is required to be disclosed under Section 134(3) (ca) of the Act.

The Statutory Auditor’s comment on your Company’s account for the year ended March 31, 2023 are
self-explanatory in nature and do not require any explanation. The Auditors Report does not contain
any qualification or adverse remarks.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Secretarial Audit Reports obtained from M/s. Shah & Associates, Company Secretaries, Ahmedabad in
accordance with the provision of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
{Appointment and Remurieration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed herewith.

INSURANCE

The Company’s Plant, Property, Equipment and Stocks are adequately insured under the Industrial All
Risk Policy,

ENVIRONMENT

As a responsible corporate citizen and as a chemicals manufacturer environmental safety has been one
of the key concerns of the Company. It is the constant endeavour of the Company to strive for compliant
of stipulated pollution control norms.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The relationship with the workmen and staff remained cordial and harmonious during the year
and management received full cooperation from employees.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The Company has no employee in respect of whom the statement under Section 197 of the Act
is required to be furnished.




DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
obtained by them, your Directors make the following statement in terms of Section 134 of the
Companies Act (Act):-

a) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards had
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 315! March, 2023 and of the profit
of the Company for the period ended on  31% March, 2023.

¢) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a Going Concern Basis;

e) The Directors had laid down Internal Financial Controls (IFC) and that such Internal
Financial Controls are adequate and have been operating effectively.

f) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems have been found adequate and operating
effectively.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The Board of Directors places on record their grateful appreciation for the assistance and continued
support received from various Central and State Government Departments, Organizations and Agencies
involved therein. Your Directors place specially on record their grateful appreciation for hand-holding
support and co-operation received from National Company Law Tribunal, Resolution Professional and
other agencies involved in handing over possession of the Company in accordance approved Resolution
Plan of the Company. Your Directors also gratefully acknowledge all stakeholders of the Company viz.
Customers, Members, Dealers, Vendors, Banks and other business partners for the excellent support
received from them during the year under review. The Directors place on record their sincere
appreciation to all employees of the Company for their unstinted commitment and continued
contribution to achieve goals of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Date: 29 April, 2023 Ankit Patel Darshan Patel
Place: Ahmedabad Executive Chairman Managing Director
DIN: 02180807 DIN: 062047676
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Kilburn Chemicals Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023

Rs. In Lakhs {except as stated otherwise)

PARTICULARS Notes 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property Plant and Equipment 31 17,828.34 19,030.16
(b) Capital Woerk in Progress 3.2 21,020.84 140.71
(c} Intangible Assets 3.3 12.66 -
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 4 0.95 -
(i) Other Financial Assets 5 464.92 86.88
() Income Tax Assets (Net) 6 5.12 0.05
(f} Other Non-Current Assets 7 888.62 88.91
Total Non Current Assets 40,221.45 19,346.71
Current Assets
(a} Inventories ] 1,303.83 387,79
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 9 10.39 2.04
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivaients 10 278.78 68.62
{iiiy Other Current Financial Assets i1 1.00 -
(c) Other Current Assets 12 4,551.58 980.05
Total Current Assets 6,146.56 1,438.80
TOTAL ASSETS 46,368.01 20,785,51
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(@) Share Capital 13 1,215.00 1,215.00
(b} Unsecured Perpstual Securities 14 24,580.00 12,326.00
{c) Other Equity 15 2,065.47 3,460,48
Total Equity 27,361.47 17,001.48
Non-Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
{#) Borrowings 16 12,778.17 -
(b) Provision 17 12.82 2.60
(c) Other Non-Current Liabilities 18 591.53 581.53
Total Non Current Liabilities 13,382.52 594,13
GCurrent Liabllities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade Payables 18
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprise 171.37 -
Total outstanding dues of creditars other than
micre and smadl enterprise 5121 80.75
(if) Other Financial-Liabilities 20 4,408.38 3,098.70
{b) Other Current Liabilities 21 31.84 10.45
{¢) Provisians 22 0.51 -
Total Current Liabilities 5,124,02 3,184.9¢
Total Liabilities 18,506.54 3,784.03
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 46,368.01 20,785.51
Summary of Significant Accounting Poiicies 2

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

FORSRBC&CQLLP
Chartered Accountants
[CAl Flrm Regn. No. 324982E / E300003

Date : 29th April 2023 Company Secretary

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Finapcial Statements.
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Place : Ahmedabad JayEsRRPtET

= . g
per Sukirit Mehta e
Partner e )j 5 .
Membrership No : 101974 / -
S AT
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.’ G S Chahai

Chief Financial Officer
T

Karana Patel- Dicto

For And on Behalf of The Board of Directors of
Kilburn Chemicals Limited
(CIN- 124117GJ1990PLC135801)

Ankit Patel-Executive Chalrman
(DIN - 02186007)

arshan Patel- Managing Director
(DIN - 02047676) |

{DIN - 01727321}

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29th April 2023




Kitburn Chemicals Limited
Staternent of Profit and Loss for the year ended on 31st March 2023

Rs. In Lakhs
PARTICULARS Notes | Forthe year ended | For the year ended 31st
3tst March 2023 March 2022
| Revenue From Operation - -
It Other income 23 21.30 8.53
Il - Total Income {I-+(I) 21.30 8.53
IV - Expenses
Employee Benefils Expense 24 671.12 108.50
Finance Costs 25 106.38 0.08
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 3 1,241.58 1,259.68
Other Expenses 28 1,279.80 1,497.10
Total Expenses {1V) 3,298.88 2,865.34
V . Profit{{Loss) Before Exceptional, Extraordinary Jtems & Tax {I-IV} (3,277.58) (2,856.81)
VI - Excepticnal ltems 27 (1,881.99) {6,030.02)
VIl - Profit/{Loss) Before Tax (V-V} (1,395.59) 3,173.21
VIll - Tax Expenses 28
1 - Current Tax - -
2 - Adjustment of Tax Relating to Earlier Years - 203.03
3 - Deferred Tax Charga / (Credit) (Nel) - {485.88)
Total Tax Expenses (VIH} - {282.85)
IX. Profitd{Loss) For The Year (VII-VIl) {1,395.59) 3,456,06
X. Other Comprehensive Income 29
ltems that will not be reclassifted to profit or loss in Subsequent periods
Remeasurement gain on defined benefit plans 1.58 -
Income tax effect on above - -
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of fax (X) i.68 -
XL Total Comprehensive Income/{L.oss) For The Year ([X+X) (1,394.01) 3,456.06
XI. Earnings Per Equity Share (Face Value Per Share - Rs 10 Each) (In Rs.} 30 (11.49) 28.44
Basic and Diluted
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integrai part of these Fmanmal Statements .
AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE :

- Kilburn Chemicals Limited
(CIN-UJ241t7G.J1990PLC135801})

FORSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn. No. 324982E / ESOOO 3

Ankit Patel-Exdcutive Chalrman
(DIN - 02180007)

G

arshan Patel- Managing Director

per Sukrut Mehta
{DIN - 02047676)

Partner
Membership Mo : 101974

G § Chahal Karana Pate-Diectar
Chief Financial Officer (DIN - 01727321)

Place : Ahmedabad

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29th April 2023

Date : 29th April 2023

For And on Behailf of The Board of Directors of




Kilburn Chemicals Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2023

PARTICULARS

Rs. In Lakhs {excepf as stafed otherwise)

For the year ended
31st March 2023

For the year ended
31st March 2022

A, Gash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (1,395.59) 3,173.21
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows :

Depreciation and Amortisaticn Expenses 1,241.58 1,259.68
Unrealised Foreign Exchange Loss (Net} 12.71 -
Liabitity no longer Required written back (1,881.99) (6,0:30.02)
Finance Cost 106.38 0.08
Interest Income {12.54) (0.54)
Profit on Sale/Discard of Properly, Flant & Equipment (Net) (2.18) 93.25
Qperating Profit/(Loss) Before Working Capital Changes {1,931.63) {1,504.36)
Adjustment for;

(Increase)/Decrease in inventories (916.04) 24,24
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivabies (8.35) (2.08)
(Increase) in Other Current Financial Assets - {1,114.24)
(Increase) in Other Current Assets (3,571.55) (34.44)
(Increase)Decrease in Other Non-Current Financial Assets {365.77) 13.62
increase in Trade Payables 590.02 2,257.54
Increase in Cther Current Financial Liabilities 289.65 1,290.23
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 21.19 {11.03}
(Decrease) in Other Non Current Financial Liabilities - {0.36)
Increasef(Decrease) in Provisions 12.30 {34.73}
Working Capital Changes {3,948.54) 2,388.78
Cash Generated/{Used in) from Qperations {5,880.17) 884.42
Direct Taxes Paid (Net of Refund) (5.07) -
Net Cash Generated/{Used in) from Operating Activities {5,885.24) 884.42
B. Cash Flow from Investment Activities

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (Including CWIP and Intangible Assets) (18,530.74) (2,396.80)
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 1.10 -
(Investment) in Fixed Deposits & Margin Money -{2.00) -
Interest Received 1.27 0.54 |
{Investment) in shares of Meghmani Foundation - (0.95) -
Net Cash (Used in) Investing Activities {18,531.32) {2,396,26)
C. Cash Flow fram Financing Activities

Proceeds from Issue of Equity Shares - 1,216.00
Proceeds from Issue of Unsecured Perpetual Securities 12,254.00 12,326.00
finance Cost Paid (404.77) (0.08)
Repayment of Short Term Borrowings - {12,049.70)
Proceeds from Bank Borrowing (Term Loan) 12,77817 -
Net Cash Generated From Financing Activities 24,627.40 1,491.24
Net Increase / {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalent (A+B+C} 210.84 (20.60)
Cash and Cash Eguivatent at the beginning of the year 68.92 89.52
Cash and Cash Equivalent at the end of the year 279.78 68.92
Cash and Cash Equivalent Comprises as under :

Balance with Banks in Current Accounts 279.66 68.10
Bank deposit with orignal maturity cf less than 3 monihs

Cash on Hand .10 0.82
Cash and Cash Equivalent at the end of the year {Refer Note 12} 279.76 68.92




S,

Notes to the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on 3ist March 2023.
1) The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard 7 on Statement of Cash Flows
2 } Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Aprii 1, Cash flows Cther March 31, 2023
2022
Current borrowings - - - -
Non - current borrowings {Note 16) - 12,778.17 - 12,778.17
Accrued interest (Note 20) - - 91.60 91.60
Total liabilities from financing activities N 12,778.17 91.60 12,869.77
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars April 1, Cash flows Other March 31, 2022
2021
Current borrowings 12,049.70] (12,049.70) - -
Non - current borrowings (Note 18) - - - -
Accrued interest (Note 20) - - R N
Total liabilities from financing activities 12,049.70| (12,049.70) “ -

The 'Otier’ column includes the effect of reclassification of non-current portion of borrowings, including lease liabilities to current due to the passage of time

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Stalements,

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE For And on Behalf of The Board of
Directors of Kilburn Chemicals Limited
(CIN-U24117GJ1990PL.C135801)

Ll

N - Y
Ankit Pafél-‘Exécutive Chairman
{DIN - 02180007)

FORSRBCACOLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICA!I Firm Regn. No. 324982E / £E300003

‘|per Sukrut Mehta

Partner o g /
M‘embership No: 101974 ) / I {r”/{f 7

{ Lﬁ{},{’ p I

="-w/’ i N [

G 8 Chahal Karana Pdtel- Direcior
Chief FinanciaE Officer (DIN - 01727321)
< A /

Place : Ahmedabad JayegiR"Ffafel Place : Ahmedabad

Date :29th April 2023 Company Secretary Date : 29th April 2023
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KILBURN CHEMICALS LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023
1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Kitburn Chemicals Limited (“KILBURN"} is a public company, incorporated on August 31, 1990, with
Corporate Identification Number U24117GJ1990PLC135801. The registered office of KILBURN is located
at Meghmani House, Nr. Safal Profitaire, Prahlad Nagar, Satellite, Ahmedabad 380015, Gujarat, India.
Kilburn was listed with Bombay Stock Exchange however the trading of the shares was suspended.

KILBURN has a manufacturing unit at Jolwa Village at Dahej Gujarat (Dahej Facility). The manufacturing
unit is currently non-operational. Kilburn was in the business of producing Anatase Grade Titanium Dioxide
in India. Titanium Dioxide (Ti02) is a bright white pigment and has multiple industrial applications including
Paints, Plastics, Inks, Dyes, Paper and Cosmetics, etc.

A Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) was initiated on 10th August, 2020 under Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and vide National Company Law Board Tribunal (NCLT) order dated 16th
December, 2021, the Reselution Plan submitted by Meghmani Organics Limited (MOL) was approved. MOL
management has taken the control and started process to restart the manufacturing facilities.

The Financial Statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution passed in Board Meeting
held on 29" April 2023.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIG POLICIES
z.1 Basis for Preparation of Accounts

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
netified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended thereafter.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on accrual basis and under historical cost basis, except for the
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

» Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments) i.e. Derivative financial instruments

In addition, the Financial Statements are presented in INR which is also the Company's functional currency
and all values are rounded to the nearest Lalch {INR 00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

2.2 Significant Accounting Estimates, Assumptions and Judgements

The preparation of the Company’s Financial Statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods.

Fstimates and Assumpfions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting

_ date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
i hablhtles within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estgm a s on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
ons about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances




KILBURN CHEMICALS LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31,2023

arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they oceur.

Taxes:

There are many transactions and calculations undertaken during the ordinary course of business for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which the tax determination is made. The assessment of probability involves estimation of a number
of factors including future taxable income.

Defined Benefit Plans (Gratuity Benefits)

A liability in respect of defined benefit plans is recognised in the Balance Sheet, and is measured as the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date less the fair value of the plan’s assets.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is based on expected future payments which arise from
the fund at the reporting date, calculated annually by independent actuaries. Consideration is given to
expected future salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Refer note 32 for
details of the key assumptions used in determining the accounting for these plans.

Useful economic lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment as disclosed in note 3 are depreciated over their useful economic lives.
- Management reviews the useful economic lives at least once a year and any changes could affect the
depreciation rates prospectively and hence the asset carrying values.

Intangible Assets

Intangible development costs are capitalised as and when technical and commercial feasibility of the asset is
demonstrated and future economic benefits are probable. The costs which can be capitalised are directly
attributable to development of the asset. Research costs are expensed as incurred. Intangible assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. Refer note 2.3 (f) for the estimated useful life of Intangible assets. The carrying value of
Intangible assets has been disclosed in note 3.

Impairment of Non- Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. It is detertined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. Where the carying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to
its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money
and the risk specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market transactions
are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share price for publicly traded
subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

T The ‘company assesses where climate risks could have a significant impact, such as the introduction of
.CHHSSlO -reduction legislation that may increase manufacturing costs. These risks in relation to climate-
relate atters are included as key assumptions where they materially impact the measure of recoverable
0 amouff These assumptions have been included in the cash-flow forecasts in assessing value-in-use amounts.
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2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

CUERENT VS, NON-CURRENT CLASSIFICATION:

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities based on Current/ Non-
Current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:
e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
e Held primarily for the purpose of trading
e  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e  Cash or Cash Equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

A liability is treated as current when it is:
s [Expected to be settied in normal operating cycle
e  Held primarily for the purpose of Trading
e Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the hablhty for at least twelve months after
the reporting period :

All other assets and liabilities are classified as Non-Current Assets and Liabilities. Deferred Tax Assets
and Liabilities are classified as Non-Current Assets and Liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents, The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from contracts with Customers is recognised when control of the goods are transferred to the
Customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf
of the Government. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements
because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the Customer,

1) Sale of Goods

Revenue from Sale of Goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to
the customer, generally on dispatch/ delivery of the goods or terms as agreed with the customer. The normal
credit term is 30 to 90 days from the date of dispatch. The Company considers whether there are other
promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price
needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Company considers the
effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration,
and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

_ .(i_)_ Variable Consideration

a If the con31derat10n in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of

con51derat10n to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the Customer. The variable
conmd@ra* on is estimated at the time of completion of performance obligation and constrained until it is
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highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Some
contracts for the sale of goods provide customers with cash discount in accordance with the company policy.
The cash discount component gives rise to variable consideration.

Volume Rebates

The Company provides retrospective volume rebates to certain customers once the quantity of product
purchases during the period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract.

(ii) Contract Assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods transferred to the customer. If the
Company performs its obligation by transferring goods to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

(iii) Trade Receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only
the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of
financial assets in {(Financial Instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.)

(iv) Contract Liabilities , _

. A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers goods to the Customer, a contract liability is recognised when
the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

.2) Interest Income o

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective

interest rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the -
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of

the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash

flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,

prepayment,extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest

income is included in Other Income in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

3) Export Incentives

Export incentives under various schemes notified by Government are accounted for in the year of exports
based on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same and is included in Revenue in the
Statement of Profit and Loss due to its operating nature.

4) Dividend
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the same is established, which is generally when
shareholders approve the dividend.

5) Insurance Claims
Claims receivable on account of insurance are accounted for to the extent the Company is virtually certain
of their ultimate collection.

¢ FOREIGN CURRENCIES
- “The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency.
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Transactions and Balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency spot rates
at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses
an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in Statement of
Profit or Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The
gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or Statement of Profit or Loss are also recognised in OCI
or Statement of Profit or Loss, respectively).

d. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMEMTY

The Company measures financial instruments, such as investments (other than equity investments in
Subsidiaries and Associates) and derivatives at fair values at each Balance Sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or Iiability, or _ .
e In the absence of a principal market, in'the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. -

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participants
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as under, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

s Level | - Quoted (unadiusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

e Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the [owest level input that is significant to the fair value
~rxmeasurement is directly or indirectly observable.

¢l.3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
fement is unobservable.
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For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

The Company's management determines the policies and procedures for both recumring fair value
measurement, such as unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement,
such as assets held for distribution in discontinued operations. The management comprises of the Managing
Director and Chief Finance Officer (CFO).

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets. Involvement of external valuers is decided
upon annually by the Board of Directors after discussion with and approval by the management, Selection
criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. Valuers are normally rotated every three years. The management decides, after discussions with
the Company’s external valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and Habilities which
are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis,
the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents,

The management, in conjunction with the Company's external valuers, also compares the change in the fair
value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy
as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes. Refer note 36.

e Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions.
e Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy.

o Investment in Equity Shares.

s Financial Instruments (including those carried at amortised cost).

e. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Capital Work in Progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. When significant parts of plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful
lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in Statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Capital Work-in-Progress comprises cost of fixed assets that are not yet installed and ready for their intended
use at the Balance Sheet date.

Items of Stores and Spares that meet the definition of Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalised at cost
and depreciated over their useful life. Otherwise, such items are classified as Inventories.

An item of Property, plant and Equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon
_...disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
. -onde-tecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
ount-0f the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.
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_';Int_a_ngibie Assets

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as prescribed
under Part C of Schedule H of the Companies Act 2013 except for assets where management believes and
based on independent technical evaluation, assets estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. Leasehold land is amortized over
the lease period on a straight line basis.

The amendments modified paragraph 17{e} of Ind AS 16 to clarify that excess of net sale proceeds of items
produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the
directly attributabie costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment.

The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the item of Property, Plant and Equipment.
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. The Depreciation rates charges over
following estimated lives:

Asset Estimated Useful life

Leasehold Land 99 Years
Building 30 Years
Carpeted Roads — RCC 10 Years
Plant & Machinery . 15-25 Years
Electrical Installations 10 Years
Furniture and Fixtures ] . ] : 10 Years
Vehicles 8 Years
Computers ) _ 3 Years
Other equipments 5 Years
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible Assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost include acquisition and other incidental cost related to acquiring the intangible
asset. Research costs are expensed as incurred. Intangible development costs are capitalised as and when
technical and commercial feasibility of the asset is demonstrated and approved by authorities, future
economic benefits are probable.

The useful lives of Intangible Assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible Assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets
with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Amortization Method Amortization Period
On Straight-line basis 5 years

| Assets
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g. IMPAIRMENT OF NON- FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired,
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or Cash-Generating
Unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account.
If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair
value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. -

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recoganised in the
statement of Profif and Loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the
amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

h., FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

A Financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a Financial Asset of one Entity and a Financial
Liability or Equity instrument of another Entity.

{A) Financial Asset
Initizl Recognition and Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset or financial liability at its fair value plus or
minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

Pebt Instruments at Amortised Cost

A 'debt instrument' is measured at its amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

- After initial measurement, such financial assets are Subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
'..__;:jEffectlve Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium-on acqulsmon and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
in other i income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in
the Stat_em_ent of Profit and Loss.
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Debt instrument af Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCT)

A 'debt instrument' is classified at FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and

b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPIL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However,
the Company recognizes interest income, impairment [osses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss
in the Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI
is reclassified from the Equity to Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCIT debt instrument is
reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt Instrument at Fair Value through Profit & Loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch'). The Company has
designated certain debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments incliuded within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity Investments

Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint ventures are out of scope of Ind AS 109 and hence, the
Company has accounted for its investment in Substdiaries and Associates at cost.

All other Equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which
are held for trading are classified as at FVTOCI. For all other Equity instruments, the Company may make
an irrevocable election to present in Other Comprehensive Income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
Company makes such election on an instrument-by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is itrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an Equity instrument as at FVTOC], then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI
to Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the

cumulative gain or loss within Equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial
.. assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's Balance Sheet) when:

: ~The rights_tb"-freceive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
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The Company has transferred its rights to recetve cash flows {rom the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement;
and ¢ither the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
translerred control of the asset, the company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company
could be required to repay.

Tmpairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18 (referred to as 'Contractual Revenue Receivables' in these
Financial Statements)

- The Company follows 'simpliﬁed approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
- Trade receivables

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather,
it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. Lifetime ECL are the
expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an Entity is required to consider:

- All contractual terms of the financial instrument {including prepayment, extension, call and similar options)
over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the
financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual
term of the financial instrument.

o 'Cashf.-ﬂo‘\.i}_fs' from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
iterms. o
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- Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL
is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral pait of the measurement of those assets in the Balance Sheet.
The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the company does
not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

(B) Financial Liabilities
Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, Loans and Borrowings, Payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of Loans and Borrowings and
Payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs,

The Company’s financial liabilities include Trade and Other Payables, Loans and Borrowings.
Subsequent measurement of Financial Liabilities

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial Liabilities. at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are
not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Loan and Borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Trade and Other Payables

These amounts represent liability for good and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial
year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade
and Other Payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initialty at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

-+ The:Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts andcurrency swaps
o “to'hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks respectively. Such derivative financial instruments
are initi'ai_iy.: recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and
aresubsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is
positive andas financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.
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k.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
medification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Off-setting Financial Instrument

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent
on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty,

INVENTORIES

Stores and Spares, Packing Materials and Raw Materials are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value
and for this purpose, cost is determined on moving weighted average basis. However, the aforesaid items are
not valued below cost if the finished products in which they are to be incorporated are expected to be sold at
or above cost.

Work in progress, Finished Products and By-Products are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value and
fort his purpose, cost is determined on standard cost basis which approximates the actual cost. Variances,
exclusive of abnormally low volume and operating performance, are adjusted to inventory.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimatied costs necessary to make the sale.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost
also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

RETIREMENT AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme established under a State Plan. The contributions to the
scheme are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year when employee rendered related services.

The Company has a defined benefit Gratuity Plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more
of service gets a gratuity on post-employment at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year

_of service as per the rules of the Company. The aforesaid liability is provided for on the basis of an actuarial

- "valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of the financial year.

The C'dinp'any has other [ong-term employee benefits in the nature of leave encashment. The liability in
respect of leave encashment is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit
method made at the end of the financial year.



KILBURN CHEMICALS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in the net inierest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability}), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss:

e Service costs comprising of current service costs, past-service costs, gains and {osses on curtailments
and non-routine settlements; and
e Net interest expense or income

Liabilities for wages, salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related services are recognised in
respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when the liabilities are to be settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the Balance Sheet.

. ACCOUNTING FOR TAXES ON INCOME

Tax Expense comprises of Current Income Tax and Deferred Tax .
Current Income Taxes

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used io
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where apprepriate.

Deferred Taxes

Deferred Tax is provided using the Hability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

-When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a husiness combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
_--accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
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- In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and
interests in Joint Ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred Tax Assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

- When the Deferred Tax Asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the mitial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised Deferred Tax Assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the Deferred Tax
Asset to be recovered.

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred Tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
Other Comprehensive Income or in Equity). Deferred Tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in Equity.

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax relates to the same taxable Entity and the same taxable
Authority.

m. PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a Finance Cost.

n. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses,
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A Contingent Liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non—occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A Contingent Liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company
does not recognize a Contingent Liability but discloses its existence in the Financial Statements.

A Contingent Assets is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits
will arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, Contingent Assets are disclosed in the Financial
Statements.

Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each Balance Shest date.
o. LEASES

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at the inception of the contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether (i) the contract involves the use of identified asset; (ii} the
Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of lease
and (iii) the Company has right to direct the use of the asset.

Where the Compaﬂy is the Lessee

The Company recognises a Right-Of-Use Asset and a Lease Liability at the lease commencement date. The
Right-Of-Use Asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the site on which
it is located, less any lease incentives received.

Certain lease arrangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. The Right-Of-Use Assets and Lease Liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain that
the option will be exercised.

The Right-Of-Use Assets is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the Right-Of-Use Assets or the end of the
fease term. In addition, the Right-Of-Use Assets is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and
adjusted for certain re-measurements of the Lease Liability.

The Lease Liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The Lease Liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. ¥ is re-
measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there
is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee,
or if Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the Lease Liability is re-measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
~amount of the Right-Of-Use Asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the Right-Of-Use
. aS_set-_haS_ been reduced to zero.

Lease fiéyl'nents have been classified as financing activities in Statement of Cash Flow.
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The Company has elected not to recognise Right-Of-Use Assets and Lease Liabilities for short term leases
that have a lease term of less than or equal to 12 months with no purchase option and assets with low value
leases. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense in statement
of profit and loss over the lease term. The related cash flows are classified as operating activities.

p.EARNING PER SHARE

Basic Eamnings Per Share

Basic Farnings Per Share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to Equity
Sharcholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted Earnings per Share
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to

Equity Shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential Equity Shares,

q.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalent in the Financial Statements comprise Cash at Banks and on Hand and Short-Term
Deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to-an insignificant risk of
changes in value,

For the purpose‘of the Statement of Cash Flows, Cash and Cash Equivale'nts consist of Cash and Short-Term
Deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the
Company’s cash management.

1 SEGMENT REPORTING

5.

Based on "Management Approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments, the Chief Operating
Decision Maker evaluates the Company's performance and allocates the resources based on an analysis of
various performance indicators by business segments. Inter segment sales and transfers are reflected at
market prices.

Unallocable items includes general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any
business segment.

Segment policies:
The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for

preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole. Common allocable costs are
allocated to each segment on an appropriate basis.

New Standards, Interpretations and amendments adopted by the company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules

2022 dated March 23, 2022, to amend the following Ind AS which are effective from April 01, 2022:

En (1) Oh'é'i"c;p,é&(}_ontracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract — Amendments to Ind AS 37

(ii) Referé‘;ﬁ_ceg’?jto the Conceptual Framework - Amendments to Ind AS 103
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(iii) Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use — Amendments to Ind AS 16
(iv) Ind AS 101 First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards — Subsidiary as a first-time adopter
{v) Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments — Fees in the "10 per cent’ fest for derecognition of financial liabilities

(vi) Ind AS 41 Agriculture - Taxation in fair value measurements

The Company assessed the above amendments for the accounting period beginning on or after 1st April 2022
and these do not have material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with applicable
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) for the year ended March 31, 2023,

t. Standards notified but not yei effective

The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issunance of the
Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these standards, if
applicable, as and when they become effective. The Ministry of Corporate affairs (MCA) has notified certain
amendments to Ind AS, through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 on 31st
March, 2023. The amendments have been made in the following standards:

Ind AS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements is amended to replace the term “significant accounting
policies” with “material accounting policy information” and providing guidance relating to immaterial
transactions, disclosure of entity specific transactions and more:

Ind AS 8: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to include the definition of
accounting estimates as “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty.”

Ind AS 12: Income Taxes relating to initial recognition exemption of deferred tax related to assets and
liabilities arising from a single transaction.

Other Amendments in Ind AS 102 — Share based Payments, Ind AS 103 — Business Combinations, Ind AS
109 — Financial Instruments, Ind AS 115 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers which are mainly
editorial in nature in order to provide better clarification of the respective Ind AS’s.

These amendments shall come into force with effect from April 01, 2023. The Company is assessing the
potential effect of the amendments on its financial statements. The Company will adopt these amendments,
if applicable, from applicability date.
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Kilburn Chemicals Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31si March 2023

NOTE:4 FINANGIAL ASSETS : INVESTMENTS

PARTICULARS

Rs. in Lakhs

31st March 2023

3ist March 2022

Investment at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income
(1) Investments in Equity Shares (Unquoted)

9,500 (31st March 2022 - Nit) Equity Shares of Meghmani Foundation of Rs. 10/- 0.95 -
each *

Total 0.95 -
*Subscribed during the year w.e.f. 18th November 2022,
NOTE:5 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (NON CURRENT)

PARTICULARS Rs. in Lakhs
31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022

Unsecured and Considered Good
Security Deposits 483.92 86.88
Bank Deposits with original maturity of more than 1 year (refer note below) 1.00 -

Total 464.92 86.88

Note :

Fixed bank deposits amounting Rs 1 Lakhs (31st March 2022 - Rs. N|I) were of varying periods of 110 6 years and earns

interest of 7.00% (31st March 2022 - Nij).

NOTE:6 INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)

PARTICULARS

Rs. in Lakhs

31st March 2023

31st March 2022

Tax deducted at source (TDS) 512 0.05
Total 512 0.05
NOTE:7 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
PARTICULARS Rs. in Lakhs
31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Unsecured, Considered Good
Capital Advances §88.62 88.91
Total 888.62 88.91
NOTE:8 INVENTORIES (VALUED AT LOWER OF COST OR NET REALISABLE VALUE)
PARTICULARS Rs. in Lakhs
31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Raw Materials 1,131.99 387.79
Stores and Spares 100.25 -
Others {Packing and Fuel Material) 71.58 -
Total 1,303.83 387.79
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NOTE:9 TRADE RECEIVABLES

PARTICULARS

Rs. in Lakhs

31st March 2023

Jtist March 2022

Trade receivables
Trade receivables - Cthers
Receivables from related parties (Refer Note 44}
Total Trade receivables

Break-up for security details:

Trade receivables

Secured, Considered Good

Unsecured, Considered Good

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Trade receivables - credit impaired

Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Unsecured, Considered Good

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Trade receivables - credit impaired

10.39

2.04

10.39

2.04

10.38

2.04

10.39

2.04

Total

10.39

2.04

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 days.
For amounts due and terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, Refer Note 35.
For information about Credit Risk and Market Risk related to Trade Receivables, Refer Note 36.
Mo trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other

person
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Trade receivables Ageing Schedule

As at 31 March 2023

Rs. in Lakhs

PARTICULARS

Current but
not due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Lessthan 6
Months

6 months
-1 year

1-2 years

2-3
years

More than 3 years

Total

Undisputed Trade
Receivables —
considered good

10.39

10.39

Undisputed Trade
Receivables — which
have significant
increase in credit risk

Undisputed Trade
receivable — credit
impaired

Disputed Trade
receivables -
considered good

Disputed Trade
receivables — which
have significant
increase in credit risk

Disputed Trade
receivabies — credit
impaired

Total

10.39

10.39

As at 31 March 2022

Rs. in Lakhs

PARTICULARS

Current but
notf due

Qutstandi

ng for following periods from due

date of payment

Less than 6
Months

6 months
- 1 year

1-2 years

2-3
Years .

More than 3 years

Total

Undisputed Trade
Receijvables —
considered good

2.04

2.04

Undisputed Trade
Receivables — which
have significant
increase in credit risk

Undisputed Trade
receivable — credit
impaired

Disputed Trade
receivables -
considered good

Disputed Trade
receivables — which
have significant
increase in credit risk

Disputed Trade
receivahles — credit
impaired

Total

2.04

2.04
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NOTE:10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

PARTICULARS Rs. in Lakhs
31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Balance with Banks in Current Account 279.66 68.10
Cash on hand 0.10 0.82
Total 279,76 68.92
NOTE:11 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CURRENT)
PARTICULARS Rs. in Lakhs

31st March 2023

J1st March 2022

Bank Deposits (refer note below)

1.00

Total

1.00

Note : -

interest of 6.50% (31st March 2022 - Nil).

Fixed bank deposits amounting Rs 1 Lakhs (31st March 2022 - Rs. Nil) were of varying periods of 3 to 12 months and earns

NOTE:12 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

PARTICULARS

Rs. in Lakhs

31st March 2023

31st March 2022

Unsecured, Considered Good

975.95

Balance with Government Authorities (Refer Note below) 4,441.71
Advances to Suppliers 95.68 -

- |Employee Imprest - -
Export Benefit Receivable 0.17 -
Prepaid Expenses 14.02 4.10

Total 4,551.58 980.05

[Note: Balance with Government Authorities pertains to GST.

NOTE:13 SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL MNo. of shares Rs. in Lakhs
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each.

As at 1st April 2021 16,000,000 1,600.00
Changes during the year - -
As at 31st March 2022 186,000,000 1,600.00
Changes during the year - -
As at 31st March 2023 16,000,000 1,600.00
AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL No. of shares Rs. in Lakhs
Cumulative Reedemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each.

As at 1st April 2021 400,000.00 400.00
Changes during the year - -
As at 31st March 2022 400,000.00 400.00
Changes during the year - -
As at 31st March 2023 400,000.00 400,00
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL No. of shares Rs. in Lakhs
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each. 12,150,000 1,215.00
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Recongciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Year

PARTICULARS No. of sharas Rs. in Lakhs
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid equity shares of Rs 10 each

As at 1st April 2021 1,38,07,377 1,390.74
Changas in equity share capital due to prior period errors - -
Batance as at st April 2021 1,39,07,377 1,320.74
Less: Cancelled in accordance of resolution plan approved by NCLT vide its order dated (1,39,07,377) (1,390.74)
16th December 2021 (refer note 39}

Add: issued pursuant to resolution plan approved by NCLT (refer note 39) 1,21,50,000 1,215.00
As at 31st March 2022 2,60,57,377 2,605.74
Changes in equity share capital dus to prior period errors - -
Balance as at 1st April 2022 2,60,57,377 2,605.74
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
As at 31st March 2023 . 2,60,57,377 2,605.74

Terms / Rights attached to Equity shares

The Company has one class of Equity Shares having par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to cne
vate per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by
the shareholders.

Detaiis of Equity shares of Rs 10 each, as heid by promoters
As at 31 March 2023

Mo. of

No. of
Cha - % eh

shares at N nae shares at % of Total v . ange

Promoter Name the during the . during-the
- the end of Shares
beginning of year year
the year
the year

Meghmani Organics
Limited 1,21,49,400 - 1,21.49,400 100.00% 0.00%
Mr. Javantibhai Patet
{Nominee of Meghmani
Organics Limited) 100 - 100 0.00% 0.00%
Mr. Ashish Soparkar
{Neminee of Meghmani . .
Organics Limited) 100 - 100 0.00% 0.00%
Mr. Natwarlal Pate!
INominee of Meghmani
Organics Limited) 100 - 100 0.00% 0.00%
Mr. Rameshphai Pale!
{Nominee of Meghmani
Organics Limited) 100 - 100 0.00% 0.00%
Mr. Anandbhai Patel
{Nominee of Meghmani '
Organics Limited) 100 - 100 0.00%] - 0.00%
Mr. Darshan Patel
{Nominee of Meghmani
Organics Limited) 100 - 100 0.00% 0.00%

Total 1,21,50,000 - 1,21,50,000
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As at 31 March 2022

No. of No. of
N g,
shares at Ch.ange shares at % of Total t c'hange
Promoter Name the during the during the
L the end of Shares
beginning of year year
the year
the year
Meghmani Organics
Lirmited 1,21,49.400 | 1.21,48,400 100.00% 4,78%
Mr. Jayantibhai Patel
(Nominee of Meghmani
Organics Limited) - 100 100 0.00% 0.00%
Mr. Ashish Soparkar
{Nominee of Meghmani
Organics Limitad) - 100 100 0.00% 0.00%
Mr. Natwariaj Patel
{Nominez of Meghmani
Organics timited) - 100 100 0.00% 0.00%
Mr. Rameshbhai Patel
{Nominee of Meghmani
Organics Limited) - 100 100 0.00% 0.00%
Mr. Anandbhai Patel
{Nominee of Meghmani
Organics Limited) - 100 100 0.00% 0.00%
Wr. Darshan Patel
(Nominee of Meghmani
Organics Limited) - 100 100 0.00% 0.00%
Total - 1,21,56,000 | 1,21,50,000

The Equity Shares of the erstwhile promoters where cancelled in accordance of resoiution plan approved by NCLT vide i{s order
dated 16th December 2021 (refer note 39)

Details of Shareholder holding more than 5% Equity Shares and that of holding company

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

PARTICULARS
No of % of Amount No of Amount
Shares Holding | (Rs. In lakhs)| Shares % of Holding {Rs. In lakhs}
Meghmani Organics Limited 1,21,49,400 100% 1,214.94 11,21,49,400 100% 1,214.94

There are no shares alloted for considerations cther than cash during the last & years.
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NOTE:14 UNSECURED PERPETUAL SECURITIES

PARTICULARS Rs. in Lakhs
Jist March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Unsecured Perpetual Securities 24,580.00 12,326.00
Total 24,580.00 12,326.00

Pursuant 1o the approved Resolution Plan vide Order of Honourable NCLT dated 16th December 2021, Meghmani Grganics
Limited, being the successful Resolution Applicant has been issued Unsecured Perpetual Security bearing a coupon rate of 8% p.a.
These securities rank senicr only to the Share Capital of the Company and are callable at the option of the Cempany, The Company
does not have any redemption obligation towards this security and as such has been considered o be in the nature of equity.

NOTE:15 OTHER EQUITY

PARTICULARS Rs. in Lakhs

31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022

(1) Securities Premium Account

Balance as at the Beginning of the year - 2,237.56 2,237.56
Changes in accounting policy or prior period efrors - -
Balance as at the end of the year 2,237.56 2,237.56
{2} Capital Reserve
Balance as at the Beginning of the year . 1,801.72 19.76
Changes in accounling policy or prior period errors B -
Adjustments pursuant to resolution plan approved by NCLT - - 1,781.98
Balance as at the end of the year 1,801.72 1,801.72
(3} General Reserve
Balance as al the Beginning of the year 1,347.50 1,347.50
Changes in accounling policy or prior peried errors . - -
Balance as at the end of the year 1,347.50 1,347.50
(4} Profit & Loss Account
Balance as at the Beginning of the year . . s (1,926.30) (5,382.36)
Changes In accounting policy or prior period errors - -
Profit for the year {1,395.59) 3,456.06
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (Net) . 1.68 -
Balance as at the end of the year (3,320.31) {1,828.30)
Total 2,066.47 3,460.48

Nature and purpose of reserves :
Securities premium
In cases where the Company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregale amount of

the premium received on those shares has been transferred 1o “Securities Premium”. The Company may issue fully paid-up bonus
shares to its members out of the securities premium and to buy-back of shares.

Capital Reserve

The Capital Reserve has been created an (i) slump sale of chemical division of the Company in earlier years,
{ii) canceliation of the Equity shares, {ji}} write back of Preference Share Capital Redemption Reserve. The reserves so created
shall be utilised as per provisions of the Act.

General reserve

General Reserve is created out of the profits earned by the Company by way of transfer from surplus in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. The Company can use this reserve for payment of dividend and issue of fully paid-up bonus shares.

Profit and Loss

Profit and loss are the profits / {losses) that the company has earned / incurred ill date, less any transfers to generat reserve,
dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. Profit and loss include re-measurement {loss) / gain on defined benefit plans,
net of taxes that will not be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss. Profit and Loss is a free reserve available to the company
and eligible for distribution to shareholders, in case where it is having posifive balance representing net earnings til date.
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NOTE:16 BORROWINGS

PARTICULARS Rs. in Lakhs
3ist March 2023 | 31s{ March 2022

SECURED
Term Loan Facilities from Banks :
In Indian currency 12,7787 -
Total non-current borrowing 12,778.17 -
The above amounts includes:

Secured borrowing 12,778.17 -

Unsecured borrowing - -

Refer Note No - 36 for Interest rate Risk and Liquidily Risk.

Details of Security and Repayment Terms :

The Company has availed Rupee Term Loan facility of Rs. 25,000.00 Lakhs of which company has drawn Rs. 12,778.17
Lakhs(31 March 2022: NIL). The Facility is secured by (a) First charge by way of Hypothecation on the movable fixed assets of
the Company (b) First charge by way of mortgage to be created on immovable fixed assets of the Company and {c} Corporate
guarantee by Meghmani Organics Limited. The borrowing carries interest at 1 Month T-Bill +1.81% p.a. payable at monthly
rest.The effective interest rate ranges from 6.57% to 8.80% during the year. Outstanding balance for this borrowing is INR
12,778.17 Lakhs.

Repayment of L.oans is as follows

1. 20 equail quarterly instalments of INR 1,250 Lakhs starting from financial year 2024-25.

The Company has sanctioned limits for Cash credit and working capital demand loans of Rs 7,500 Lakhs {31 March 2022; N!L)
as sanctioned limit in Indian Currency. These loans are secured by first charge by way of hypothecation of the entire Current
Assets of the Company and Corporate Guarantee given by Meghmani Organics Limited. During the period company has not
utilised the limits.

NOTE:17 PROVISIONS (NON - CURRENT)

PARTICULARS Rs. in Lakhs
o 31ist March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Gratuity (Refer Note 32) - ) . . 854 2860
Compensated absences 4.28 -
Total 12.82 2.60

NOTE:18 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

PARTICULARS Rs. in Lakhs
31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Other Payable (refer note below) 591.53 591.53
Total 591.53 §91.53

Other Payable pertains to liablity towards EPCG obligation to be fulfilled by the Company
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NOTE:19 TRADE PAYABLES

PARTICULARS : Rs. in Lakhs
31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Outstanding Dues of Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer Noie 31) 171.37 -
Qutstanding Dues of Creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises {Refer Note 51211 80.75
below)
Total 683.48 80.75

Terms and Conditions of the above Ouistanding Dues :

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled an 30-360 days terms. For amounts due to related parties
and terms and conditions with Related Parties, Refer Note 35. Refer Note 36 for Company’s credit risk management
processes.

Trade payables Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2023 Rs. in Lakhs

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

PARTICULARS Unbilled |Current but Less than 1-2 years 23 More than 3 years Total

Dues not due 1 year years

Total outstanding
dues of micro
enterprises and small
enterprises - 121,21 50.18 - - = 171.37

Total outstanding
dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises

and small enterprises 60.55 270.11 179.57 1.88 - . 512.11

Disputed dues of
micro enterprises and
small enferprises - - - - - - -

Disputed dues of
creditors other than
micro enterprises and
small enterprises - - - - . . .

Total 60.55 391.32 229.73 1.88 - - 683.48
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As at 31 March 2022

Rs. in Laichs

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

PARTICULARS Less than

Unbiiled
1 year

Dues

Current but
not due

1-2 years

2-3
years

More than 3 years

Total

Total outstanding
dues of micro
enterprises and small
enterprises - - -

Total outstanding
dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises

and small enterprises - - 80.75

80.75

Disputed dues of
micro enterprises and
small enterprises - - -

Disputed dues of
creditors other than
micro enterprises and
small enterprises - - -

Total - - 80.75

80.75

NOTE:20 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CURRENT)

PARTICULARS

Rs.in

Lakhs

31st March 2023

3Mst March 2022

Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Interest Accrued but not due on Borrowings '
Other Payable (refer note below)

Employee Benefit Payable

Payable for Retention Money

Payables for Capital Goods

91.60
1,375.10
101.71
554.85
2,285.13

3,049.15
20.00

20.55

Totai

4,408.39

3,098.70

Other Payabte pertains to amount payabie to Gujarat industrial Deviopment Corporation (GIDC) in respect to transfer of land
and other charges. The same has been subsequently paid by the Company. Reduction in Liablity is pursuant to final order

passed by GIDC (Refer note 27)

NOTE:21 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

PARTICULARS Rs. in Lakhs
J1ist March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Statutory Dues Payabile 31.64 10.45
Total 31.64 10.45
NOTE:22 PROVISIONS {CURRENT)
PARTICULARS Rs. in Lakhs
31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Provisions for Employee Benefits
Gratuity 0.02 -
Leave Encashment 0.49 -
Total 0.51 -
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NOTE:23 OTHER INCOME

Rs. in Lakhs
For the year For the year
PARTICULARS ended 31st March [ ended 31st March
2023 2022
OTHER NON OPERATING INCOME
Interest Income on
- Bank Deposits 0.03 0.54
~ Others 12.51 -
Provisions written back - 7.99
Profit On Sale Of Property, Plant and Equipment 2.18 -
Qther Non Operating Income 6.58 -
Total 21.30 8.53
NOTE:24 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE
Rs. in Lakhs
For the year For the year
PARTICULARS ended 31st March [ ended 31st March
2023 2022
Salary, Wages and Bonus 546.08 102.30
Contribution to Provident Fund, Other Funds and Gratuity (Refer Note 32) 27.82 4.70
Staff Welfare Expenses 97.22 1.50
Total 671.12 108.50
NOTE:25 FINANCE COSTS
Rs. in Lakhs
For the year For the year
PARTICULARS ended 31st March | ended 31st March
2023 - 2022
Interest expense on :
-Others 84.80 0.01
Other borrowing Costs (includes bank charges, etc.) 21.58 0.05
Total 106.38 0.06
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NOTE:26 OTHER EXPENSES

Rs. in Lakhs

For the year For the year

PARTICULARS ended 31st March |ended 31st March
2023 2022
Consumption of Stores and Spares 208.67 0.20
Power & Fuel 102.90 3.31
Repairs and maintenance: -

- Buildings 0.88 “
- Plant and Machinery 370.00 2.88

Pollution Control Expenses 11.16 -

Labour Contract Charges 240.85 -
Rent 10.38 15.26
Rates & Taxes 34.74 18.67
Insurance 33.58 10.84
Legal & Professional Charges 36.63 68.27
Loss on Sale / Discarded Property, plant and eqguipment - 34.47
Printing and Stationery 3.39 0.57
Security Service Charges 57.99 57.42

Transportation Expenses 12.27 -
Directors' Sitting Fee - 0.80
Water charges - -1,250.65
Miscellaneous Expenses 147 .56 29.81
Audit Fees 9.00 3.95
Total 1,279.80 1,497.10

Rs. in Lakhs

Payments fo Auditors (Excluding taxes)

Faor the year
ended 31st March

For the year
ended 31st March

2023 2022
(@) as Auditors 9.00 3.95
TOTAL 9.00 3.95

NOTE:27 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
Rs. in Lakhs
For the year For the year

PARTICULARS ended 31st March |ended 31st March

2023 2022
Exceptional (Gain} (1,881.89) (6,030.02)
Total {1,881.99) (6,030.02}

1. Pursuant to final order received by the Company towards dues to industrial authority, excess amount reversed amounting to
Rs. 1,881.99 lakhs has been disclosed under exceptional item, for the year ended 31st March 2023, considering its disclosure

while booking the expenses by erstwhile management.

2. Refer Note 39, for the details of exceptional gain for previous year.
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NOTE:28 TAXES

(i) In assessing the realisability of deferred tax assets, the Company considers the extent {o which, it is probable that
the deferred tax asset will be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred {ax asseis is dependent upan the
generation of future taxable profits during the periods in which those temporary differences and tax loss carry-
forwards become deductible, The Company considers the expected reversal of deferred tax liabilifies and projected
future taxabie income in making this assessment.

(i) In compliance of ind AS - 12 on “Income Taxes”, the item wise details of Deferred Tax Asset (net) are as under:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Provided during Provided
- As on the year in during the year As on
Particulars 1st April 2021 | Statement of in OCI 315;;";?““
Profit & Loss (net)

Deferred Tax Liahility:
Related to Fixed Assets 887.98 {887.98) - -
Total Deferred Tax Liability (A) 887.98 {887.98) - -
Deferred Tax Assets: -
Other Disallowances etc. - -
Brought Forward Business Losses 402.10 (402.10) - -
Total Deferred Tax Assets (B) 402.10 (402.10) - -
Deférred Tax Asset/{Liability) (B-A)’ (485.88) " 485.88 i ] -

In absence of historical trend and as there are no operation after CIRP, considering the principle of prudence,
Deferred tax asset in respect of unused tax losses and others {net of liabilities} as of March 31, 2023 and March 31,
2022 have not been recognized by the Company.
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NOTE:29 OTHER CONMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Rs. in Lakhs
For the year For the year
PARTICULARS ended 31st March | ended 31st March
‘ 2023 . 2022
Statement of other comprehensive income
Remeasurement gain on defined benefit plans 1.58 -
Income tax effect on above - -
Total 1.58 -

NOTE:30 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the

weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

The following reflects the income and share used in the basic and diluted EPS compuitation:

Rs. in Lakhs
For the year For the year
PARTICULARS ended 31st March | ended 31st March
2023 2022
Profit/{Loss) atiributable to Equity Shareholders {1,395.59) 3,456.08
Weighted Average number of Equity Shares outstanding (Nos) 12,150,000 12,150,000
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (Rs.) (11.49)( 28.44

Face value per Equity Share (Rs.)

10

10
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31. "'The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated August 26, 2008 which
recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the
Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum in accordance with the ‘Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008’ {'the MSMED Act).

Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such Enterprises as at March 31, 2023 has been made in the
Financial Statements based on information received and available with the Company. Further in view of the Management, the
impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be material. The
Caompany has not received any claim for interest from any Supplier as at the Balance- Sheet date.

The details as required by MSMED Act are given below:

Rs. in Lakhs
For the year For the year
PARTIGULARS ended 31st March | ended 31st March
2023 2022

The principat amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier
as at the end of accounting year;
Principal and Interest Amount
Trade Payable 171.37 -
Capital Payahle o ) 4 T 1,333.80 -t
The amount of interest paid by the buyer under the MSMED Act along with the - -
amounts of the payment made to the amounts of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
The amount of interest due and payable for the year (where the principal has been 84.58 -
paid but interest under the MSMED Act not paid)
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year; - -
and . ) -
The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding period, until - -
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise,
for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23

On basis of information and records available with the Company, the above disclosures are made in respect of amount due to
the micro, small and medium enterprises, which have been registered with the relevant competent authorities. This has been
relied upen by the auditors.

NOTE:32 GRATUITY AND OTHER EMPOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS

Retirement Benefits

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five years of
service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at
retirement age. The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or
loss and the funded status and amounts recagnised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:
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Table 1: Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

3tst March 2023

Jist March 2022

Opening balance of defined benefit obligation

2.60

Service Cost

a. Current Service Cost

7.37

b. Past Service Cost

C. Loss/(Gain) from Settlement

Interest Cost

017

Benefits Paid

Re-measuremenis

a. Actuarial Loss/(Gain) from changes in demographic assumptions

b.  Actuarial Loss/(Gain) from changes in financial assumptions

C. Actuarial Loss/(Gain) from experience over the past period

(1 .-58)

Effect of acquisition/ (divestiture)

Changes in foreign exchange rafes

Closing balance of the defined benefit obligation

8.56

Table 2: Expenses recognised in the Profit and L.oss Account

{Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended 31st March | ended 31{st March
2023 2022

Service Cost

Current Service Cost 7.37 2.60
b. Past Service Cost “ -
c. Loss/{Gain) from Settlement - .
Net Interest on net defined benefit liability/ (asset) 0.17 -
Employer Expenses 7.54 2.60

Table 3: Net Liability/ (Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

31st March 2023

31ist March 2022

Present Value of DBO 8.56 2.60
Fair Value of Plan Assets - -
Liability/ (Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet 8.56 2.60
Funded Status [Surplus/{Deficit)] {8.56) (2.60)
Of Which, Short term Liability 0.02 -
Experience Adjustment on Plan Liabilities: (Gain)/Loss (1.58) -

Table 4: Actuarial Assumptions

Particulars

31st March 2023

31st March 2022

Salary Growth Rate 10% p.a. 0%
Discount Rate 7.2% p.a. 0%
Interest Rate for interest on net DBO 6.5% p.a.

Withdrawal Rate 12% p.a. 0%
Meortality Rate IALM 2012-14 (Ult.) 0%
Weighted average remaining duration of the obligation 6 years 0%
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Table 5: Movement in Other Comprehensive Income

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

31st March 2023

st March 2022

Opening Balance {Loss)

Re-measurements on DBO

a. Actuarial (Loss)/Gain from changes in demographic assumptions - -
b.  Actuarial (Loss)/Gain from changes in financial assumptions - -
c. Actuarial {Loss)/Gain from experience over the past period 1.58 -
Re-measurements on Plan Assels

a. Actuarial {Loss)/Gain from changes in financial assumptions - -
a. Return on Plan assets, excluding amount inciuded in net interest on the net - -
C. Changes in the effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling - -
Closing Balance (Loss) 1.58 -

Table 6: Sensitivity Analysis

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Increases 1%

Decreases 1%

Satary Growth Rate

DBO increases by

DBO decreases by

91,892 81,278

. DBQO decreases by] DBO increases by
Discount Rate 82,549 95}503
. DBO decreases by| DBO increases by
Wlthd rawal Rate 44,930 48,{)1 9

Mortality (increase in expected lifetime by 1 year)

Negligible change

Mortality {(increase in expected lifetime by 3 years)

DBO increases by
1,000

Table 7: Movement in Surplus/ (Deficit)

(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended 31st March |ended 3ist March
2023 2022

Surplus/ {Deficit) at start of year (2.60} i -
Movement during the year

Current Service Cost (7.37) (2.60}
Past Service Cost - -
Net Interest on net DBG (0.17) -
Actuarial gain/ (loss) 1.58 -
Contributions - -
Surplus/ (Deficit) at end of year (8.56) {2.60)

Table 8: Other Disclosures
Description of ALM Policy
As the plan is unfunded, an Asset Liability Matching policy is not applicable.

Description of funding arrangements and funding poicy that affect future contributions
The plan is unfunded and the status is unlikely to change over the next few years.

Maturity profite
The weighted average duration of the obligation is 8 years as at the valuation date.
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NOTE:33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

A

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts (Excluding interest and penalty)

Rs. in Lakhs
PA
RTICULARS 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
In respect of Letler of Credit 15.89 -
Rs. in Lakhs

Capital Commitments

3Mst March 2023

J1ist March 2022

Estimated amount of contracts pending execution on
capital accounts and not provided for {net of advances)

4,554.06

NOTE:34 SEGMENT REPORTING

A

The Company's Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) examines the Gompany's performance from

business and geographic perspective. In accordance with Ind AS-108 - Operating Segments, evaluation by

the CODM and based on the nature of activities performed by the Company, which primarily relate to

manufacturing of pigments, the Company does not operate in more than one business segment.

Analysis By Geographical Segment

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-current assets, which do not include
income tax assets and financial assets analysed by the geographical area in which the assets are

Jocated:
Rs. in Lakhs
: Particulars 31st March 2023 31ist March 2022
Carrying amount of segment assets
Within India 39,750.46 19,259.78

Outside India
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NOTE:35 RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES :-
iy Holding Company

=P Enterprises in which Key Managerial
Personnel [KMP] & their relatives have
significant
influence :

e Key Managerial Personnel :

== Relatives of Key Managerial Personnet:

Meghmani Organics Limited (MOL)

Meghmani Finechem Limited (MFL)
Meghmani Foundation
Meghmani Organics Limited (MOL)

Mr.
M.
Mr,
Mr.
M.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Ms.

Jayanti Patel (Chairman) (Upto 31.12.2022)

Ashish Soparkar (Director) (Uptc 31.12.2022)
Natwarlal Patel {Director) (Upto 31.12.2022)
Ramesh Patel (Director) (Upto 31.12.2022)

Anand Patel (Director) (Upte 31.12.2022)

Ankit Patel (Executive Chairman) (w.e.f 07.12.2022}
Darshan Patel (Managing Directer) (w.e.f 07.12,2022)
Karana Patel (Director) (w.e.f 07.12.2022)

Maulik Patel (Director) (w.e.f 07.12,2022)

Kaushal Saparkar (Director) (w.e.f 07.12.2022)

G.S3. Chahal (Chief Financial Officer)

Jayesh R Patel (Company Secretary)

Taraben Patel
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Kilburn Chemicals Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31st March 2023

NOTE:36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The significant accounting poficies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are
recognised, in respecl of each class of financia! assal, financiat liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 2 o the Financial Statements.

A. Category-wise classification of financial instrument
The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2023 i3 as follows;
{Rs. in Lakhs})

Carrying amoung
Fatr value through | Fair value through Amortised Cost Total
31st March 2023 profit and loss other comprehensive
income
Financial Assets
Neon-Current Investments (Refer Note 4) - 0.95 B 0.95
Non-Current Other Financial Assels (Refer Note 5) - - 464.92 464.92
Current Assets
Trade Receivables {Refer Note 9) - - 10.39 10,39
Cash and Cash Equivalenis {Refer Note 10} - - 279.78 279.76
Other Current Financial Asset {(Refer Nole 11) 1.00 1.00
Total Financial Assets . 0.95 756.07 7567.02
Financial Liabilities
Non-Current Borrowings (Refer Note 16) - - 1277817 12,778.17
Trade Payables {Refer Nole 18} - i 583.48 683.48
Other Current Financial Liabilities (Refer Note 20) - - 4,408.3% 4,408.39
Total Financial Liabilities . - 17,870.04 17,870.04

The carrying value of financial inslruments by categories as of March 31, 2022 is as follows:
[Rs. in Lakhs}

Carrying amtount
- Fair value through | Fair value through Amortised Cost Total
3I1st March 2022 profit and loss | other comprehensive
incame
Financial Assets
Mon-Current Investments (Refer Note 4) - - - -
Nen-Current Other Financial Assets (Refer Note 5) - - 86,88 86.88
Current Assets
Trade Receivables {Refer Note 9) . ' o - . 2.04 2.04
Cash and Cash Equivalents {Refer Note 10} - - 68,92 68.92
Other Current Financial Asset (Refer Note 11) - -
Total Financial Assets - - 157.84 157.84
Financial Liahilities
Non-Current Borrowings (Refer Note 16} - - - -
Trade Payables {Refer Note 19} - - 80.75 B0.75
Other Current Financial Liabilities {(Refer Nole 20) - - 3,098.70 3,098,70
Total Financial Liabilities - - 3,179.45 3,179.45

B. Measurement of Fair values and Sensitivity analysis

Fafr value hisrarchy:

The fair value of the Financial Assets and Liabiiities is included &t the amount al which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and/or disclosing the fais value of financial
instruments by valuation technigues:

(i) Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical Assets or Liabilities.

(ii) Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the Asset or Liabiiity, either directly {i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e.,
derived from prices}.

(iii) Level 3: inpts for the Asset or Liabilily thal are not based on observable market data (uncbservable inputs).”

Receivablesfborrowings are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates, specific counley risk factors, individual credilworthiness of
the customer and the sk characteristics of the financed project. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected credit losses of
these raceivables.

The cost of unquoted investments included in Level 3 of fair value hierarchy approximate their fair value because there Is a wide range of possible fair value
measuremenis and the cost represents estimate of fair value within that range

Financial instrument measured at fair value {Rs. in Lakhs}
Fair value as at Fair value hierarchy

! T st March 2023 [ 31st March 2022
Investraent at FVTOCI (unquated) (Refer Note 4) 0.95 | - Level 3

Financial assets / financial liabilities




Kithurn Chemicals Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31st March 2023

Financial instrument measured at amoertised cost

The catrying amount of financial assets and financial fiabilities measured at amortised cost In the financial statements are a reasonable approximation of their
fair values since the Company does not anticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or
setiled,

Reconciliation of level 1 Falr Values

There have been no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3 dusing the year ended March 31, 2023,

Financial Risk Management Framework

The Company's Board of Direclors have overall respensibiity for the establishment and oversight of lhe Company's risk management framework. The
Company manages market risk through treasury operations, which evaluales and exercises independent control over the entire process of markel risk
management, The finance team recommends risk management objectives and poficies. The activities of this operations include management of cash
resources, hedging of foreign currency exposure, credil control and ensuring comptliance with market fsk limils and policies.

The Company's principal Financial Liabilities, other than Derivalives, comprises of Long Term and Short Term Borrowings, Trade and Other Payatles, and
Financial Liabilitiss. The main purpose of these Financial Liabilities is to finance the Company's operations. The Company's principal Financial Assets include
Leans, Trade and Cther Receivables, Cash and Cash Equivalents, Other Bank Balances and other Financial Assels that derive directly fram its operations,

The Company has an effective risk management framework to monitor the risks controls in key business processes. in order to minimise any adverse effects,
on the bottom line, the Company takes varous mitigation measures such as credit control, foreign exchange forward contracls to hedge foreign currency risk;
exposures. Derivatives are used exclusively for hedging purposes and not as trading or speculative instruments.

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments

- Credit risk ;

- Market risk ; and

- Liquidity risk

i. Cradit Risk

Credil risk is the risk that counter party will nol meet its obligalion leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed lo credi risk arising from its operating
" |activities primarily frem trade recelvables and from financing activities primarily relating to parking of surplus funds as Deposits with Banks. The Company
considers probability of default upon inifial recognition of assets and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout |-
the reporting period.

The carrying amount of following Financial Assets represents the maximum credit exposure:

Financial instruments and cash deposit

Credit risk from balances with Banks and Financial Institutions is managed by lhe Company's treasury depariment. Investments of surplus funds are made only
with approved counter pariies and within credit limits assigned to each counterparly. The limits are set ie minimise the conceniration of risks and therefore
mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s polential failure to make payments.

Trade Receivables . ] . . .
Trade Receivables of the Company are lypically unsecured except o the exient of the securily deposits received from Lhe customers or financial guaraniees
provided by the market organizers in the business. Credit risk is managed through cradit approvals and periodic monitaring of the creditwerthiness of customers
to which Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition
and monitors the creditworliiness of its Customers o which it grants credit terms in the normal ceurse of business. The allowance for impairment of Trade
receivables is created to the extent and as and when required, based upon the expected collectability of accounis Receivables. The Company evaluates the
concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its Customers are localed in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely
independent markets,

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivabies and loan from individual customers based on historical trend, industry practices and the
nusiness environment in which the entity operaies. Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience and past trends,

The maximum expasure to Credit Risk for Trade Receivables by geographic region are as follows:
[Rs. in Lakhs)

Patticulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Domestic 10.3¢ 2.04
Other Regions - -
Total 10.39 2.04
Age of Recelvables

{Rs. in Lakhs!
Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Neither due nor impaired N n
Past due 1-90 days 7.97 2.04
Past due 91-180 days 242 -
More than 180 days - -
Total 10.39 2.04

Management believes Lhat the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 180 days are slilt collectible in full, based on historical payment behaviour

and extensive analysis of customer Credit Risk, including underiying customers’ credit ratings if they are available.




Kilburn Chemicals Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31st March 2023

Firancial instruments - Fair Values and Risk Management (continued)

i, Market Risk

Marke! risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of & financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises thres types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk, and other price risk such as equity price risk. Financlal instruments affected by market
tisk include loans and borrowings, deposits, FVTOCI and amoertised cost investments.

Foreign Currency Risk

Fareign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate becatse of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates refates primarily to the Company’s operating activities {when revenue or
expense is denominated in a foreign currency),

Exposure to Currency Risk

The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabililies as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are as below:
The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in Rs, are as follows
{Rs. in Lakhs)

Parliculars st March usp
2023 Denominated INR
Total exposure
Financial Assets
Non-Current investmants 0.95 - 0.5
Non-Current Other Financial Assets . . 464.92 - . 46492
Current Assels
Trade Receivables 10.39 - 10.39
Gash and Cash Equivalents ' 27976 | - 279.76
Other Current Financial Asset 1.00 - 1.00
Total 75702 - 757.02

Financial Liabilities . )
MNon-Current Borrowings 12,778.17 12,778.147

Tracde Payables B ' : 683.48 : . 683.48
Other Current Financial Liabilifies 4,408.39 ©9.03 4,309.36
Total 17,870.04 99.03 17, 771.01
Particulars 31st March usp
2022 Denominated INR
Total exposure

Financial Assets
Non-Current Investments - - R

Non-Current Other Financial Assefs 86.88 - 86.88
Current Assets

Trade Receivables 2.04 - 2.04
Cash and Cash Equivalents 68.92 - 68,92
Other Current Financial Assat - - -
Total 157.84 “ 157.84

Financial Liabilities
Non-Current Borrowings - R

Trade Payables 80.75 - 80.75
Other Current Financial Liabilities 3,008.70 - 3,098.70

Total 3,179.45 . 3,179.45




Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strangthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against US dollars and Euro at March 31 would have affected the measurement
of financial instruments denominated in US dollars and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all
cfher variables, in particuiar interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

{Rs. in Lakhs}

Profit or {Loss) Equity, net of tax
Effect in INR Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
3Mst March 2023
5% movement
uso 4.95 (4.95) 4.95 (4.95)
Profit or (Loss) Equity, net of tax
Effect in INR Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

31st March 2022
5% movement
Us0o




Kilburn Chemicals Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements For The Year Ended 3ist March 2023

Financial instruments — Fair values and Risk Management {continued)
iii. Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obfigations as lhey fall due. The Company’s approach o
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it wili always have sufficient Haquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both
normatl and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's repultation.

Exposure to Liguidity Risk

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, by continuously monitoring forecast and acluat cash flows and
matching the maturity profiles of the financial assets and {iabilities. The table belew summarises the remaining coniractual maturities of
financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments and exclude
the impact of netling agreements.

{Rs. In Lakhs)

31st March 2023 Contractual cash flows
Particular Canrying Total 4 Year or 1-2 years 2-5 years | More than
amount Less 5 years
Rupee Term Loans from Banks
HDFC Bank Limited 1277817 | 12,778.147 - 1,918.72 7,666.80 3,194.54
Trade Payables (Refer Note 19} 683.48 683.48 683.48 - - B

{Rs. In Lakhs)

31st March 2022 Contractual cash flows

Particular ) Carrying Total 1 Year or 1-2 years 2-5 years | More than
amount Less § years

Rupee Term Loans from Banks
HOFC Bank Limited - - - - - -

Trade Payables (Refer Note 25) 80.75 80.75 80.75 - - -

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or-activities in the same gecgraphical
region, or have economic fealures that would cause their ability to meet contractual cbligations to be similarly affected by changes in
economic, political cr other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to deveiopments
affecting a particular industry

In order lo avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance of
a diversified portfolio. entified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly. Selective hedging is used within
the company to manage risk concentrations at both the relationship and industry levels




Kitburn Chemicals Limited

Motes to the Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31st iarch 2023

Financial instruments — Fair Values and Risk Management (continued)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a Financial instrument wili fluctuate because of changes in market interast
rates. The Company's expesure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to ihe Company's Long-term Debt Cbligations with
floating Interest rates. The Company manages ils interest rate risk by having a balanced poitfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings.

Exposure to Interest Rate Risk

Company's Interest Rate Risk arises from Borrowings Obligations. Borrowings issuad exposes o fair value interest rate risk. The Interest rate
profile of the Company’s interest-bearing Financial Instrumenits as reported to the management of the Company is as follows.

{Rs. In Lakhs}

Variable.rate instruments

31st March 2023

31st March 2022

Non Current - Borrowings

12,778.47

Total

12,778.17

Cash Flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A reascnably possible change of 100 basis poinis in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased /(decreased) equity and profit or loss
by the amounts shown below. This anaiysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency ekchangs rates, remain constant. ’

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Profit or {Loss) Equity, Net of Tax
100 bp 100 bp
Particufars increase | decrease | 100 bp increase | 100 bp decrease
31st March 2023
Nen Cutrent - Borrowings {127.78) 127.78 {95.62) 895.62
Total (127.78) 127.78 {95.62} 95,62

31st March 2022
Non Current - Borrowings

Total




Kilburn Chemicals Limited
Notes to the Financlal Statements For The Year Ended 31st March 2023

NOTE:37 LEASES

(A} Leases as lessee

{I) The carrying value of the Rights-of-use and depreciation charged during the year :

{ Rs. in Lakhs )

Particulars 3ist March 2023 | 31st March 2022
Opening Balance 2,544.86 2,573.79
Additions during the year - -

Depreciation charged during the year 28.91 28.93
Closing Balance 2,515.95 2,544.86

(i) Amount Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss Account during the Year

( Rs. in Lakhs )

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2023

For the year ended
31st March 2022

Depreciation expense of right-cf-use assets

28.91

28.93

Total Expenses

28.91

28.93

(iil) Amounts recognised in statement of cash flows

{ Rs. in Lakhs )

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2023

For the year ended
st March 2022

Total Cash outflow for Leases




Kilburn Ghemicals Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31st March 2023

NOTE:38 RATIOS

Ratio Numerator Denominator 31st March | 31st March |% change| Reason for variance above
2023 2022 26% year on year
Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.20 0.45| 165.,95%|Increase in Current ratio is on
account of increase in Enput
GST recievable due to ongoing
capitalisation
Debt-Equity Ratio* Current Borrowings + Non [Shareholder's 0.46 NA NANA
Current Borrowings + Equity
Lease Payments
Debt Service Eamings for debt service = |Debt service = NA NA NA|NA
Coverage Ratio# Net profit after interest & Lease
taxes + Non-cash operating|Payments +
expenses + Interest & Principal
Lease payment + Other Repayments
adjustment like loss on sale
of Assets
Return on Equity Ratio |Net Profits after taxes Average NA NA NAINA
# Shareholder's
: : . Equity ‘ .
Inveniory Turnover Revenue from Operation  [Average Inventory NA NA NAINA
Ratio #
Trade Receivables Revenue from Operation - |Average Trade NA NA NAINA -
Turnover Ratio # Receivable
Trade Payables Total Purchases Average Trade 2.94 22.50| -86.92%|Decrease is on account of
Turncver Rafio Payables increase in average trade
payables.
Net Capital Turnover |Revenue from Operation  [Working capital = NA NA NAINA
Ratio # ' Current assets —
Current liabilities
Net Profit Ratio # Net Profit Revenue from NA NA NAINA,
Operation
Return on Capital Earnings before interest Capital Employed = NA| NA NA|NA
Employed # and taxes Tangible Net Worth
+
Total Debt + Lease
Liability + Deferred
Tax
Liability
Return on lnvestment |Interest (Finance income) |Average of NA NA NAINA

#

tnvestment in
Subsidiary & Banik

Deposit

* As the Company is not having any debts as on 31.03.2022, Debt-Equity Ratio cannot be calculated
# The Company is in process of restructuring its manufacturing facifity and currently dees not have any revenue and operations, considering
which these ratios cannot be calculated effectively




Kilburn Chemicals Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31st March 2023

NOTE:39

The Corporate Insolvency Resoiution Process (CIRP) initiatec on 10th August, 2020 under
Insolvancy and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 by Hor'ble National Company Law Board Tribunal (NCLT)
has been completed and order effecting approval of the Resolution Plan {(ARP} submitted by
Meghmani Organics Limited {MOL) was passed on 16th December, 2021 by NCLT (NCLT Order).
The consequential effect of ARP was as follows:

a. MOL deposited Rs. 13,176 lakhs for the payment to financial creditors, operationai creditors,
employee dues and CIRP costs as per the NCLT Order. Oui of the above amount received, the
Company has allotted 1,21,50,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each at par amounting fo Rs.1215 lakhs
to MOL and its nominees on 2nd February, 2022. As a result, the Company become subsidiary of
MOL. The balance amount of Rs. 11,961 lakhs together with further amounts infused had been
converted into Unsecured Perpetual Security {in the nature of equity) bearing a coupon rate of 8%
p.a

b. The Board of Directors of the Company was reconstituiied on 23rd December, 2021 with
nominees of MOL being inducted as the members of the reconstituted Board.

¢. Existing 1,39,07,377 equity shares were cancelled and the Company was delisted from BSE.

d. The following amounts aggregating to Rs.1781.96 lakhs have been credited to Capital Reserve in
previous year ended 31st March, 2022,
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Sr. No. |Particulars Amount
1D {On cancellation of Equity Shares 1390.74
ii) Preference Share Capital Redemption Reserve 391.22
Total 1781.96

e. Pursuant to re-assessment of assets and liabilities by the management, the following amounts
aggregating to Rs. 6030.02 lakhs were charged to Profit and Loss account as exceptional items in

previous year ended 31st March, 2022,
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Sr, No.|{Particulars . Nofe No. Amount

i) - Sacured Loans from Bank no longer payable 18 4,058.60} -
i} Unsecured loans no longer payable 18 2,824.20
iii) Crediters and Other Liabilities no longer payable 19 & 20 2,344.02
iv) Liabifities for Employees no longer payable 20 1,671.01
v} Fixed Assets and Capital Work in Progress written off 2,384 (422.85)
vi) Provisions for Other Financial Assets written off 12 {1,114.24)
vii) Trade Receivables written off 9 (14.27)
viii) Advance from Customers written off 21 0.62
ix) Loan io related parly written off 11 (278.57)
X) Inventories written off 8 {448.77)
Xi) Other Non-current assets written off 7 (112.50)
Xii) Security Deposit assets written off 5 (25.89)
xiii) Cash and Cash Equivalents written off 10 {1.79)
Xiv) GST balances not claimable 13 (595.72)
*V) Transfer charges and penaities for Leasehold Land 21 {1,803.20)
xvi) Provisions made for EPCG non-compliances 17 (46.63)
xvii) Provision made for claims from staturory authorities 22 (6.00)
Total! {net) 6030.02




Kilburn Chemicals Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31si March 2023

NOTE:40 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions or its business requirements. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital tc shareholders or issue new
shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31,
2022

The Gompany monitors capital using a ratio of ‘Adjusted Net Debt' to ‘Adjusted Equity’. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is
defined as total Liabilities, comprising Interest-bearing Loans and Borrowings and obligattons under Finance Leases, less Cash
and Cash Equivalents. Adjusted Equity Comprises ali components of Equity.

Particulars {Rs. In Lakhs}

3ist March 2023 31st March 2022
Total Interest bearing liabilities 12,778.17 -
Less : Cash and cash equivalent 279.76 68.92
Adjusted net debt 12,498.41 (68.92)
Total equity 27,861.47 17,001.48
Less ; Hedging reserve - -
Adjusted equity , 27,861.47 17,001.48
Adjusted net debt to total equity ratio ) ) 0.45 . - (0.00)

NOTE:41 OTHER DISCLOSURES
(i) The Company doas nol have any Benami properiy, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for
nolding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

{il) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off. under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section
560 of Companies Act, 1956, )
(iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,
(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year,
(v) The Company has not advanced or lcaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
{Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Uiltimate Beneficiaries
{vi) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), inctuding foreign entities (Funding Party} with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or ctherwise) that the Group shail:

{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parly (Uliimate Beneficiaries) or

(b} provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

{vii) The Company does nct have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books af accounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or
survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(vii)) The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank of financial institution or other iender during the year and up to
date of approval of financial statements

NOTE:42 EVENTS OCCURRED AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Company evaluates evenis and transactions that occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior toappraval of
financial statement to determine the necessity for recognition and/or reporting of any of these eventsand transactions in the
financial statements. As of 29th April 2023 there were no material subseguent events to be recognized or reported that are not
already disclosed.




Kilburn Chemicals Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31s{ March 2023

43 - Previous period figures have been regrouped / restated to give effect of scheme of arrangement wherever nacessary to

make them comparable with thase of the current year.
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